

Stricken language would be deleted from and underlined language would be added to the law as it existed prior to this session of the General Assembly.

1 State of Arkansas  
2 83rd General Assembly  
3 Regular Session, 2001  
4

As Engrossed: S4/10/01

# A Bill

Act 1650 of 2001  
SENATE BILL 867

5 By: *Joint Budget Committee*  
6  
7

## For An Act To Be Entitled

9 AN ACT TO INCREASE STIPENDS BY TEN DOLLARS  
10 (\$10.00); AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.  
11

### Subtitle

12 TO INCREASE STIPENDS BY TEN DOLLARS  
13 (\$10.00).  
14  
15  
16

17 BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF ARKANSAS:  
18

19 SECTION 1. Arkansas Code 25-16-903 is amended to read as follows:  
20 25-16-903. Stipend - Authorization for ~~\$50~~ \$60.

21 Each of the following state boards may, by a majority vote of the total  
22 membership of the board cast during its first regularly scheduled meeting of  
23 each calendar year, authorize payment to its members of a stipend not to  
24 exceed ~~fifty dollars (\$50.00)~~ sixty dollars (\$60.00) per meeting attended,  
25 and the board members shall receive no other compensation, expense  
26 reimbursement, or in-lieu-of payments except as provided in § 25-16-902:

- 27 (1) Arkansas State Board of Public Accountancy;
- 28 (2) Arkansas State Board of Acupuncture and Related Techniques;
- 29 (3) Arkansas Alcohol and Drug Abuse Coordinating Council;
- 30 (4) Alcoholic Beverage Control Board;
- 31 (5) Athletics and Activities Board;
- 32 (6) Arkansas Appraiser Licensing and Certification Board;
- 33 (7) Arkansas State Board of Architects;
- 34 (8) Arkansas Black History Advisory Committee;
- 35 ~~(9) Board of Directors of the Arkansas Development Finance Authority;~~
- 36 ~~(10)~~ (9) Arkansas History Commission;

- 1       ~~(11)~~(10)    State Board of Barber Examiners;
- 2       ~~(12)~~(11)    Boiler Advisory Board;
- 3       ~~(13)~~(12)    Burial Association Board;
- 4       ~~(14)~~(13)    Capitol Zoning District Commission;
- 5       ~~(15)~~(14)    Arkansas Cemetery Board;
- 6       ~~(16)~~(15)    Arkansas Child Abuse/Rape/Domestic Violence Commission;
- 7       ~~(17)~~(16)    Contractors Licensing Board;
- 8       ~~(18)~~(17)    State Board of Cosmetology;
- 9       ~~(19)~~(18)    State Crime Laboratory Board;
- 10      ~~(20)~~(19)    Board of Developmental Disabilities Services;
- 11      ~~(21)~~(20)    Arkansas Educational Television Commission;
- 12      ~~(22)~~(21)    Board of Electrical Examiners of the State of Arkansas;
- 13      ~~(23)~~(22)    State Board of Election Commissioners;
- 14      ~~(24)~~(23)    Emergency Medical Services Advisory Council;
- 15      ~~(25)~~(24)    State Employment Security Advisory Council;
- 16      ~~(26)~~(25)    State Board of Registration for Professional Engineers and
- 17      Land Surveyors;
- 18      ~~(27)~~(26)    State Library Board;
- 19      ~~(28)~~(27)    Arkansas Fire Protection Licensing Board;
- 20      ~~(29)~~(28)    Arkansas Fire and Police Pension Review Board;
- 21      ~~(30)~~(29)    Arkansas State Board of Registration for Foresters;
- 22      ~~(31)~~(30)    HVACR Licensing Board;
- 23      ~~(32)~~(31)    Liquefied Petroleum Gas Board;
- 24      ~~(33)~~(32)    Arkansas Livestock and Poultry Commission;
- 25      ~~(34)~~(33)    Marriage and Family Therapy Licensure Board;
- 26      ~~(35)~~(34)    Arkansas State Board of Massage Therapy;
- 27      ~~(36)~~(35)    Mississippi River Parkway Commission;
- 28      ~~(37)~~(36)    Arkansas Motor Vehicle Commission;
- 29      ~~(38)~~(37)    Arkansas Natural Heritage Commission;
- 30      ~~(39)~~(38)    Arkansas State Board of Nursing;
- 31      ~~(40)~~(39)    Arkansas State Occupational Therapy Examining Committee;
- 32      ~~(41)~~(40)    State Apprenticeship Committee;
- 33      ~~(42)~~(41)    Arkansas State Board of Physical Therapy;
- 34      ~~(43)~~(42)    Arkansas Board of Dispensing Opticians;
- 35      ~~(44)~~(43)    Advisory Committee on Petroleum Storage Tanks;
- 36      ~~(45)~~(44)    Arkansas Board of Podiatric Medicine;

- 1        ~~(46)~~ (45)    Arkansas Real Estate Commission;
- 2        ~~(47)~~ (46)    State Marketing Board for Recyclables;
- 3        ~~(48)~~ (47)    Board of Review;
- 4        ~~(49)~~ (48)    Arkansas Rural Medical Practice Student Loan and Scholarship
- 5    Board;
- 6        ~~(50)~~ (49)    Arkansas Geological Commission;
- 7        ~~(51)~~ (50)    Advisory board to the Division of Land Surveys;
- 8        ~~(52)~~ (51)    Licensing Committee for Operators of Solid Waste Management
- 9    Facilities for the Arkansas Pollution Control and Ecology Commission;
- 10       ~~(53)~~ (52)    State and Public School Life and Health Insurance Board;
- 11       ~~(54)~~ (53)    Department of Human Services State Institutional System
- 12    Board;
- 13       ~~(55)~~ (54)    Arkansas State Police Commission;
- 14       ~~(56)~~ (55)    State Building Services Council;
- 15       ~~(57)~~ (56)    Arkansas Towing and Recovery Board;
- 16       ~~(58)~~ (57)    Arkansas Veterans' Commission;
- 17       ~~(59)~~ (58)    Veterinary Medical Examining Board;
- 18       ~~(60)~~ (59)    Commission on Water Well Construction;
- 19       ~~(61)~~ (60)    Arkansas Waterways Commission;
- 20       ~~(62)~~ (61)    Committee of Plumbing Examiners;
- 21       ~~(63)~~ (62)    Arkansas Waste Water Treatment Plant Operators' Licensing
- 22    Committee;
- 23       ~~(64)~~ (63)    State Board of Collection Agencies;
- 24       ~~(65)~~ (64)    Elevator Safety Board;
- 25       ~~(66)~~ (65)    State Apprenticeship Coordinating Steering Committee;
- 26       ~~(67)~~ (66)    Arkansas Board of Hearing Instrument Dispensers; and
- 27    Arkansas Tobacco Control Board.

28

29        SECTION 2. Arkansas Code 25-16-904, as amended by Act 726 of 2001, is

30    amended to read as follows:

31        25-16-904. Stipend - Authorization for ~~\$75~~ \$85.

32        Each of the following state boards may, by a majority vote of the total

33    membership of the board cast during its first regularly scheduled meeting of

34    each calendar year, authorize payment to its members of a stipend not to

35    exceed ~~seventy five dollars (\$75.00)~~ eighty-five dollars (\$85.00) per meeting

36    attended, and the board members shall receive no other compensation, expense

1 reimbursement, or in-lieu-of payments except as provided in § 25-16-902:

- 2 (1) Auctioneers Licensing Board;
- 3 (2) Arkansas Economic Development Commission;
- 4 (3) State Commission on Child Support;
- 5 (4) Supervisory Board for the Arkansas Crime Information Center;
- 6 (5) Board of Correction and Community Punishment;
- 7 (6) State Board of Education;
- 8 (7) Board of Embalmers and Funeral Directors;
- 9 (8) State Board of Health;
- 10 (9) Arkansas Health Policy Council;
- 11 (10) Parks, Recreation, and Travel Commission;
- 12 (11) Arkansas State Board of Pharmacy;
- 13 (12) Arkansas Pollution Control and Ecology Commission;
- 14 (13) Post Prison Transfer Board;
- 15 (14) Arkansas Racing Commission;
- 16 (15) Arkansas Sentencing Commission;
- 17 (16) State Board of Workforce Education and Career Opportunities;
- 18 (17) Oil and Gas Commission;
- 19 (18) Professional Bail Bond Company and Professional Bail Bondsman

20 Licensing Board;

21 (19) *Arkansas Soil and Water Conservation Commission; and*

22 (20) *Red River Commission;*

23 (21) Board of Trustees for the Arkansas School for the Blind and the  
24 Arkansas School for the Deaf; and

25 (22) Board of Directors for the Arkansas Development Finance  
26 Authority.

27  
28 SECTION 3. Arkansas Code 25-16-905 is amended to read as follows:

29 25-16-905. Stipend - Authorization for ~~\$100~~ \$110.

30 Each of the following state boards may, by a majority vote of the total  
31 membership of the board cast during its first regularly scheduled meeting of  
32 each calendar year, authorize payment to its members of a stipend not to  
33 exceed ~~one hundred dollars (\$100)~~ one hundred and ten dollars (\$110) per  
34 meeting, examination, evaluation, or inspections attended or for any day  
35 while performing any proper business of the board, and the board members  
36 shall receive no other compensation, expense reimbursement, or in-lieu-of

1 payments except as provided in § 25-16-902:

- 2 (1) Arkansas State Board of Dental Examiners;
- 3 (2) Arkansas State Medical Board;
- 4 (3) State Board of Optometry;
- 5 (4) Sex Offenders Assessment Committee; and
- 6 (5) Arkansas State Board of Chiropractic Examiners.

7

8 SECTION 4. Arkansas Code 29-30-173(e), concerning stipends for members  
9 of the Sex Offenders Assessment Committee, is amended to read as follows:

10 (e) Members of the committee appointed by the Governor shall not be  
11 entitled to compensation for their services but may receive expense  
12 reimbursement and a stipend not to exceed ~~one hundred dollars (\$100.00)~~ one  
13 hundred and ten dollars (\$110) per meeting in accordance with § 25-16-902 to  
14 be paid by the Arkansas Department of Correction.

15

16 SECTION 5. Arkansas Code 12-12-1301(c), concerning stipends for  
17 members of the Sex Offenders Assessment Committee, is amended to read as  
18 follows:

19 (c)(1) In the event of a vacancy of one (1) of the members appointed  
20 by the Governor for any reason other than expiration of a regular term, the  
21 vacancy shall be filled for the unexpired portion of the term by appointment  
22 of the Governor.

23 (2) The members of the committee appointed by the Governor may  
24 be removed by the Governor for neglect of duty or malfeasance in office.

25 (3) Members of the committee appointed by the Governor shall not  
26 be entitled to compensation for their services but may receive expense  
27 reimbursement and a stipend not to exceed ~~one hundred dollars (\$100)~~ one  
28 hundred and ten dollars (\$110) per meeting, in accordance with § 25-16-902,  
29 to be paid by the Department of Correction.

30

31 SECTION 6. Arkansas Code 15-4-2202(j), concerning the stipend for  
32 members of the Arkansas Workforce Investment Board, is amended to read as  
33 follows:

34 (j) The Board may, by a majority vote of the total membership of the  
35 board cast during its first regularly scheduled meeting of each calendar  
36 year, authorize payment to its members of a stipend not to exceed ~~one hundred~~

1 ~~dollars (\$100)~~ one hundred and ten dollars (\$110) per meeting attended, and  
2 the board members shall receive no other compensation, expense reimbursement,  
3 or in-lieu-of payments as provided in § 25-16-902. The stipend shall be paid  
4 from the Arkansas Workforce Investment Fund.

5  
6 SECTION 7. Arkansas Code 15-11-601(f), concerning the stipend for  
7 members of the Keep Arkansas Beautiful Commission, is amended to read as  
8 follows:

9 (f) Members of the commission shall serve without compensation for  
10 their service but may receive expense reimbursement and a stipend of ~~seventy-~~  
11 ~~five dollars (\$75.00)~~ eighty-five dollars (\$85.00) per day in accordance with  
12 § 25-16-901 et seq.

13  
14 SECTION 8. Arkansas Code 17-27-405 is amended to read as follows:

15 17-27-405. Compensation for board members.

16 The members of the State Board of Examiners of Alcoholism and Drug  
17 Abuse Counselors may receive a stipend of ~~fifty dollars (\$50.00)~~ sixty  
18 dollars (\$60.00) per day for each day of attendance at a board meeting plus  
19 expense reimbursement pursuant to § 25-16-903. The stipend and expense  
20 reimbursement shall not be made if available funds are insufficient for this  
21 purpose.

22  
23 SECTION 9. Arkansas Code 17-104-201(d), concerning the stipend for  
24 members of the Perfusionists Advisory Committee, is amended to read as  
25 follows:

26 (d) Members of the committee shall not be entitled to compensation for  
27 their services, but may receive expense reimbursement and a stipend not to  
28 exceed ~~fifty dollars (\$50.00)~~ sixty dollars (\$60.00) per meeting in  
29 accordance with § 25-16-902, to be paid by the Department of Health.

30 */s/ Joint Budget Committee*

31  
32  
33 APPROVED: 4/16/2001